
South Haven City Hall is barrier free and the City of South Haven will provide the necessary 
reasonable auxiliary aids and services for persons with disabilities, such as signers for the 
hearing impaired and audio tapes of printed materials being considered at the meeting to 
individuals with disabilities at the meeting upon seven (7) days notice to the South Haven City 
Hall.    
 

Zoning Board of Appeals 
 

 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
 
Monday, September 22, 2014 
7:00 p.m., Council Chambers 
 
 
NOTE: The variance request for 906 Monroe Blvd. has been withdrawn. 
 

                            City of South Haven 

 

 
 
1. Call to Order 
 
2. Roll Call 

 
3. Approval of Agenda 
 
4. Approval of Minutes – July 28, 2014 
 
5. Interested Citizens in the Audience Will be Heard on Items Not on the Agenda 
 
6. New Business – PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

a. Administrative appeal to Zoning Administrator decision to deny a requested land division 
at 38 Northshore Drive. 

 
b. Rear yard variance request for property at 26 Grand Boulevard 

 
 

7. Other Business  
 

8. Member Comments 
 
8.   Adjourn 
 
RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED, 
 
Linda Anderson 
Zoning Administrator 
 



Zoning Board of Appeals 
 

 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
 
Monday, July 28, 2014 
7:00 p.m., Council Chambers 
 

                            City of South Haven 

 

 
 
1. Call to Order by Lewis at 7:00 p.m. 
 
2. Roll Call 

 
Present:  Bugge, Miller, Paull, Wheeler, Lewis 
Absent:   Boyd, Wittkop 

 
3. Election of Officers 2014-2015 
 

Motion by Bugge to nominate the officers (Chair: Lewis and Vice-Chair Paull) now serving. 
Second by Miller. 
 
Motion by Miller to close nominations. 
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 
 
By unanimous consent, officers Lewis for Chair and Paull for Vice-Chair were approved. 

 
4. Approval of Agenda 
 

Motion by Bugge, second by Paull to approve the July 28, 2014 regular meeting agenda as 
presented. 
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 

 
5. Approval of Minutes – March 24, 2014 
 

Motion by Bugge, second by Wheeler to approve the March 24, 2014 regular meeting 
minutes as corrected: 
 

 Page 2, top of page. Replace the word “neighbor’s” with “neighboring.”  
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 

 
 
 

 
September 22, 2014 
ZBA Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 2 of 53



July 28, 2014 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
DRAFT 

 

2 

 

6. Interested Citizens in the Audience Will be Heard on Items Not on the Agenda 
 

None at this time. 
 
7. New Business – PUBLIC HEARING 

 
Goodwill Industries, Inc., is asking for three (3) variances for their proposed store located at 
340 73 ½ Street. The variances would reduce the proposed side yard setback from the 
required 30 feet to 24 feet (south) and 20 feet (north). The applicant is also asking for a 
landscaping variance to reduce the front landscaping requirement from 25 feet to 10 feet. 
The parcel number for the subject property is 80-53-620-052-00. This application seeks 
variances from zoning ordinance sections 2405, 1-a, and 2406 1-a. 
 
Bugge explained her previous working relationship with the applicant and disclaimed any 
current professional relationship or financial interest.  
 
Anderson explained that the applicant was unaware of the overlay zoning and designed the 
project according to the underlying B-4 zone. Anderson does not have a problem with the 
requested variances, noting that this property does not front on Phoenix Street and 
explaining that the overlay zone was intended for the main corridors. The sub-committee 
included the entire Meijer property and those on this south side because they felt that at 
some time this property will all be developed. Anderson felt that was a strong mitigating 
circumstance and the lot is fairly narrow with an unusual configuration for what they want to 
do.  

 
Anderson also noted that this application has been to Planning Commission one time. 
Planning Commission tabled their decision; their next meeting is a week from Thursday. “By 
then the applicant should have addressed all the necessary corrections and updates 
requested by staff and the decision of the Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA).” Anderson 
assumes the board has read the findings of staff and applicant. 

 
Motion by Paull, second by Bugge to open the public hearing. 
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 
 
Terry Schley, President of Schley Architects, 4200 South 9th Street, P.O. Box 9640, 
Kalamazoo, MI 49009 Introduced Kris Nelson, also with Schley Architects and John 
Dillworth, CEO of Goodwill Industries. Noted they are here to answer questions, particularly 
regarding anything that brought them to this point. Interprets that the overlay would appear 
generally intended for a different kind of outcome than where this particular site is located. 
 
Lewis called for questions. Bugge noted on the application that on the south side the 
setback on the plan is thirty-two feet eight inches (32’8”) and asked where that is measured 
to commenting, “It is only twenty-four feet (24’).” 
 
Chris Nelson, Schley Architects, explained that the dimension you see is the width of the 
driveway. The measurement is from the property line to the drop-off structure. Bugge noted 
that a variance is not required on that side to which Nelson agreed. 
 

 
September 22, 2014 
ZBA Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 3 of 53



July 28, 2014 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
DRAFT 

 

3 

 

Bugge asked about the “garage.”  Nelson explained that it is a covered drop-off with garage 
doors on each end so people can drop off donations without actually coming inside the 
building. Bugge asked for the size of that area and why it is that wide. Nelson said it is 
designed for two (2) vehicles. Bugge stated that the garage could be only one car wide and 
allow the overall building to be narrower. Schley explained, “The reality is we are trying to 
receive donations and it is frequently the case that someone pulls up and there is quite a bit 
of activity; the area around the vehicles is needed to get people out of both sides of the car; 
get things out of the back seat of the car; get things out through the trunk and from attached 
additional vehicles.”   
 
Dillworth: The dimensions for donation drive-through are based on the way Goodwill stores 
in Minneapolis/St. Paul takes donations. “With the garage doors closed in the winter people 
could come and donate merchandise without having to feel the full brunt of the wind off of 
Lake Michigan. This is the way this is done with all Goodwill stores in Minneapolis/St. Paul.”  
 
Bugge requested the gross floor area of the store noting that zoning is only concerned with 
the usable floor area.  Nelson responded that the usable floor area is around 5400 square 
feet.  
 
Bugge noted that the overlay zone only requires one (1) parking space for each 200 square 
feet of usable floor area so your required spaces would be twenty-seven and you are 
providing fifty (50) spaces. Lewis asked what the requirement would be for the B-4 zoning 
district and it was determined that it would be thirty-six (36). In response to a query by 
Bugge asking if/why the applicants are asking to increase the required parking spaces, 
Schley responded that at certain times, such as Super Saturdays, the extra parking space is 
needed. “The client recognizes that rather than having inadequate parking it would be better 
to have more parking, based on their knowledge of other facilities throughout the region.”  
 
Bugge asked about the lot having deeded access to the lot to the west and whether it also 
has a parking easement? Schley responded, “No, not to our knowledge.”  
 
Bugge noted that on the drawing it indicates, in relationship to the request for landscaping 
reduction, ten feet (10’) to that one parking space there. One of your drawings shows a thirty 
foot (30’) building setback, but there is not a line for twenty-five feet (25’); “Can you estimate 
about where a twenty-five (25’) line would be on the newer drawing?” Discussion ensued 
regarding how many parking spaces would be eliminated if the front yard variance was not 
approved. Nelson noted that the landscaping required would take out about four (4) to five 
(5) spaces.  
 
Motion by Paull, second by Miller to close the public hearing. 
All in favor. Motion carried. 
 
Lewis called for discussion from the board. 

 
Bugge commented that this is a first property coming in under this ordinance and explained 
that she was on the committee that drafted this ordinance. “We looked very carefully at the 
properties, determining that currently it certainly does not speak well of the city when you 
come into the city; the whole intent was to upgrade the image of the city, provide 
consistency and add landscaping. That was to bring in a unified appearance and improve 

 
September 22, 2014 
ZBA Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 4 of 53



July 28, 2014 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
DRAFT 

 

4 

 

the whole area.” Personally, Bugge feels this property was intended to be included with this 
overlay”. Bugge noted that was her feeling and asked if Lewis will be going through the 
criteria. 

 
Lewis enumerated the standards that must be met: 
 
1. Such variance will not be detrimental to adjacent property and the surrounding 

neighborhood.  
 

Personally, Lewis said he does not believe such variance to be detrimental.  Paull 
noted that the variances are fairly minimal and it seems to him that it is not going 
to impact the surrounding retail businesses negatively. 
 

2. Such variance will not impair the intent and purpose of this Ordinance. 
 
Bugge expressed her belief that the requested variance is against the intent of the 
overlay district; although right now it may not be detrimental to adjacent 
properties, in the future it will be under a lesser standard than adjacent properties. 
“Someone always has to be the first one to come in under a new ordinance,” 
according to Bugge.  

 
3. Exceptional or extraordinary circumstances or conditions apply to the property in 

question or to the intended use of the property that do not apply generally to other 
properties in the same zoning district. Such circumstances shall create a practical 
difficulty because of unique circumstances or physical conditions such as narrowness, 
shallowness, shape or topography of the property involved, or to the intended use of the 
property. See Section 2204(2). 
 
Bugge does not think this property has any exceptional circumstances. It is a 
good property for a use that designs its building to fit the property. The only thing 
exceptional might be the curvature on the front of the lot.  
 
Lewis said it is unique in his view because it fronts on 73 ½ Street and not 
Phoenix.  Paull noted the intent was to beautify along the front of properties of the 
entrance corridors; this property is on the back which makes it not as vital to the 
beautification. Paull noted this property comes close with the design, but it is not 
perfect. Lewis added that if everything was perfect we would not be here. 

 
4. Such variance is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of a substantial property 

right similar to that possessed by other properties in the same zoning district and in the 
vicinity. The possibility of increased financial return shall not of itself be deemed 
sufficient to warrant a variance. 
 
Bugge said it (the property) is usable for the intended use, maybe not for this 
width of building. 

 
5. The condition or situation of the specific piece of property or of the intended use of said 

property, for which the variance is sought, is not of so general or recurrent a nature as to 

 
September 22, 2014 
ZBA Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 5 of 53



July 28, 2014 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
DRAFT 

 

5 

 

make reasonably practicable the formulation of a general regulation for such conditions 
or situation. 
 
Lewis said, “Obviously not.” 
 

6. The condition or situation of the specific piece of property or of the intended use of said 
property, for which the variance is sought, shall not be the result of actions of the 
property owner. In other words, the problem shall not be self-created. 
 
Lewis commented, “I always have problems with this one.”  Bugge noted that if 
you want to go by the landscaping, perhaps you could say it is not self-created. 
“More parking spaces than required by the ordinance are a self-created situation 
and the width of the building and the garage are causing the problem. There are a 
lot of options.”  
 

7. That strict compliance with area, setbacks, frontage, height, bulk or density would 
unreasonably prevent the owner from using property for a permitted purpose, or would 
render conformity unnecessarily burdensome. 
 
 Bugge doesn’t think so. 
 

8. That the variance requested is the minimum amount necessary to overcome the 
inequality inherent in the particular property or mitigate the hardship. 
 
Bugge said a different size building or a different number of parking spaces could 
mitigate the problem. 
 

9. That the variance will relate only to property under the control of the applicant. 
 

All agreed this was the case. 
 
Wheeler asked, “Can we consider the two issues separately?” to which Lewis responded 
yes.  
 
Paull would like to ask the applicant and owner if they would like to speak to this:  “If we (the 
board) would deny the landscaping variance, how many parking spaces would you have?” 
Discussion ensued between Lewis, Bugge and the applicants as they looked at the plan. 
The applicants determined that they could meet the landscaping setback and still have forty-
four (44) spaces.  
 
Bugge commented, “If they wanted to look at the width of the drive-through . .  . “ when Paull 
interjected that he will fight that one, asking, “Can you imagine having to unload a piece of 
furniture in a twelve foot (12’) wide space?”  Wheeler noted that people could get injured; 
cars could get scratched and dinged, and so on.   
 
Dillworth: “You have to have space on all sides of a vehicle to unload things. In the winter in 
South Haven we expect this to be an issue. The specifications used are exactly what they 
do in Minneapolis/St. Paul.” Dillworth noted that they do not anticipate cars side by side in 
the garage space, only one car at a time.  

 
September 22, 2014 
ZBA Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 6 of 53



July 28, 2014 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
DRAFT 

 

6 

 

 
Miller stated he doesn’t feel qualified to determine what is burdensome and what is not for 
the people of Goodwill to function; he would depend on them to know what they need and it 
would be in their best interest to do it correctly. Miller is hesitant to question the size of the 
off-loading area, based on their experience. Lewis noted that it is the board’s job to listen to 
all the facts and make our best judgment, commenting, “That is why we gather information.”  
 
Miller pointed out that it is unfortunate the applicants did not have the overlay information 
when they were putting the plan together. “That is not their fault, and on that basis, to not 
offer any kind of a variance. . . “As Miller looks at it, the requests before the board are, for 
future generations, not going to be about the nuances of landscaping and parking places. 
Miller would like future generations to think the officials at the time permitted it and it is in the 
best interest of the community as opposed to defining down to the last inch what is in the 
applicants’ best interest. 
 
Lewis wondered if this property were not in the overlay, to which Paull responded, “We 
wouldn’t be here.” Lewis hates to second guess the Planning Commission pointing out that 
the overlay’s intent was to beautify Phoenix Street. Bugge clarified that it was the whole 
area. Paull noted that we have one piece of this, being essentially removed from that 
consideration, and looked at uniquely. “It nearly fits; it has a couple of glitches, not major, 
not going to stick out like sore thumbs, won’t make development around it any harder or 
easier, for that matter. It will still be the only property in there with landscaping” 
 
Motion by Paull that the north side yard variance of ten feet (10’) be approved because it 
won’t mess up the value of the property or mess up the neighbors.  Second by Miller.  
 
Lewis called for discussion. Hearing none a roll call vote was taken: 
 
Yeas:   Miller, Paull, Wheeler, Lewis 
Nays:   Bugge  
 
Motion by Bugge deny the landscaping variance because the reduction of parking spaces 
will still give them excess spaces beyond the requirement. With no support the motion dies. 
 
Motion by Paull, second by Miller to grant the landscaping variance.  
 
Bugge asked if she can amend that motion. Lewis reminded her that the variance carries on 
the property, not on the development.  Paull agreed to hear the proposed amendment. 
Bugge asked that a condition be placed on the approval that landscaping shall not be 
reduced beyond what is shown on the site plan. After some discussion, Paull agreed to the 
amendment. 
 
Lewis called the vote on amendment. 
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 
 
A roll call vote was taken on the variance for front landscaping. 
 
Yeas:  Miller, Paull, Wheeler, Bugge, Lewis 

 
September 22, 2014 
ZBA Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 7 of 53



July 28, 2014 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
DRAFT 

 

7 

 

Nays:  None 
 
Motion carried. 
   

8. Other Business  
 

Lewis asked if we have any business floating out there. Anderson said there have been 
some calls and inquiries; people seem to be waiting until after summer. No applications or 
requests have been received. 

 
9. Member Comments 
 

There were none. 
 
8.   Adjourn 
 

Motion by Bugge, second by Miller to adjourn at 8:52 p.m. 
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 
 
  

 
RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED, 
 
Marsha Ransom 
Recording Secretary 
 

 
September 22, 2014 
ZBA Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 8 of 53



Zoning Board of Appeals 
Staff Report 

September 22, 2014 

Zoning Board of Appeals Staff Report 

 
Agenda Item #6a 

Brussee Land Division Appeal 
 

 
City of South Haven 

 

 
Background Information: In March of 2014 the City Council adopted an amendment to the B-3 
Waterfront Business Zone which allowed, by special use permit, single family homes to be 
constructed on “existing lots when it is documented that the development of any other permitted 
use is not possible due to lot size or configuration”.  This amendment was intended as a means 
to make use of small, existing lots which were otherwise unusable due to size or shape for any 
of the allowed business or planned residential developments. It was not the intention of the 
planning commission or city council to allow lots splits to create new single family lots. 
 
A request for a lot split in the B-3 zone (38 Northshore Drive) was received by the zoning 
administrator in July of 2014 (application attached). The application was denied based on 
zoning ordinance section 1704 (1)(f)(7). 
 
Section 1704(1)(f) of the Zoning Ordinance provides nine criteria for the approval  of lot 
divisions, which are in addition to the requirements in the Michigan Land Division Act.  Section 
1704(1)(f)(7) provides that “no lot shall be divided unless the property lines, size, shape, 
orientation, and existing zoning of the resulting lots shall be such  as to promote the efficient 
and appropriate development and use of the land as contemplated for each resulting lot and as 
permitted in this Ordinance for the applicable zoning district.”   
 
The requested lot division would result in two smaller lots that could not be feasibly developed 
for any of the permissible uses in the B-3 district.  The development of single-family homes on 
the resulting lots would be prohibited because Section 901(17) provides that special use permits 
are only available for single-family homes on “existing lots” (i.e. those lots existing as of the date 
of the amendatory ordinance permitting single-family homes as a special use in the B-3 district).  
The two resulting lots would be too small for any use other than the development of single-
family homes, which is not permitted. 
 
Note: The second issue of the appeal concerns the State Land Division Act. The 
City Attorney will be addressing this in a confidential memo which will be sent to 
you in a separate email. 
 
  Recommendation: Staff recommends that the decision of the zoning administrator be upheld 
as the resulting two (2) lots would not be in compliance with zoning ordinance requirements for 
development.  
 
Support Material: 
 
Land Division application 
Appeal to Zoning Administrator’s decision 

 
September 22, 2014 
ZBA Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 9 of 53



 
September 22, 2014 
ZBA Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 10 of 53



 
September 22, 2014 
ZBA Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 11 of 53



 
September 22, 2014 
ZBA Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 12 of 53



 
September 22, 2014 
ZBA Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 13 of 53



 
September 22, 2014 
ZBA Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 14 of 53



 
September 22, 2014 
ZBA Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 15 of 53



 
September 22, 2014 
ZBA Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 16 of 53



 
September 22, 2014 
ZBA Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 17 of 53



 
September 22, 2014 
ZBA Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 18 of 53



 
September 22, 2014 
ZBA Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 19 of 53



 
September 22, 2014 
ZBA Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 20 of 53



 
September 22, 2014 
ZBA Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 21 of 53



 
September 22, 2014 
ZBA Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 22 of 53



 
September 22, 2014 
ZBA Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 23 of 53



 
September 22, 2014 
ZBA Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 24 of 53



 
September 22, 2014 
ZBA Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 25 of 53



 
September 22, 2014 
ZBA Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 26 of 53



 
September 22, 2014 
ZBA Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 27 of 53



 
September 22, 2014 
ZBA Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 28 of 53



 
September 22, 2014 
ZBA Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 29 of 53



 
September 22, 2014 
ZBA Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 30 of 53



 
September 22, 2014 
ZBA Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 31 of 53



 
September 22, 2014 
ZBA Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 32 of 53



 
September 22, 2014 
ZBA Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 33 of 53



 

Zoning Board of Appeals 
Staff Report 

September 22, 2014 

Zoning Board of Appeals Staff Report 

 
Agenda Item #6b 

Rear Yard Setback Variance 
 

 
City of South Haven 

 

 
Background Information:   Matthew and Cynthia Carstens are requesting a variance to 
build a new house and deck which will extend to the rear property line in the R1-C zone. 
The proposed deck further extends onto the 40 foot stretch of property along the 
channel which is owned by the U.S. Coast Guard. The applicant has a license 
agreement with the Coast Guard for the proposed encroachment.  
 
This property also has a 14 foot easement which bisects the property at what could be 
the building envelope.  
 
Recommendation: Staff recommends that the ZBA members review the application, staff 
findings of fact and the physical property before making a determination on the variance. The 
members must find that the request complies with all standards of zoning ordinance section 
2205 to approve a variance. Staff does not find a problem with the approval of this request. 
 
Support Material: 
 
Completed application 
Aerial photo of property 
Staff Findings of Fact 
 
 

 
September 22, 2014 
ZBA Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 34 of 53



 
September 22, 2014 
ZBA Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 35 of 53



 
September 22, 2014 
ZBA Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 36 of 53



 
September 22, 2014 
ZBA Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 37 of 53



 
September 22, 2014 
ZBA Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 38 of 53



 
September 22, 2014 
ZBA Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 39 of 53



 
September 22, 2014 
ZBA Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 40 of 53



 
September 22, 2014 
ZBA Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 41 of 53



 
September 22, 2014 
ZBA Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 42 of 53



1 
 

STAFF FINDINGS OF FACT 
CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
 
DATE: September 22, 2014 
ADDRESS: 26 Grand Boulevard 
ZONING DISTRICT: R-1C 
LOT DIMENSIONS: Front – 70 feet; Sides – 152 feet;  
LOT AREA: .24 acres (10,640 sq. feet) 
LOT COVERAGE: 30% +/- 
REQUIRED SETBACKS: Front – 3’; Rear – 3’; Side – 3’ 
EXISTING SETBACKS: Buildings to be demolished 
PROPOSED SETBACKS: Front – 3’; Rear – None; Side – 3’ 
VARIANCE REQUEST: Mathew and Cynthia Carstens are requesting a variance to build a 
new house and deck which will extend to the rear property line in the R1-C zone. The proposed 
deck extends into the property along the channel which is owned by the U.S. Coast Guard. The 
applicant has a license agreement with the Coast Guard for that encroachment. The variance is 
only asked to allow the applicant to construct to the rear line (water side) of his property. 
 
DIMENSIONAL VARIANCE STANDARDS 
City of South Haven Zoning Ordinance Section 2205: 
 
1. Such variance will not be detrimental to adjacent property and the surrounding 
neighborhood. 
The existing house on the property, which will be demolished, extends over the 
property line and onto the Coast Guard property. The house immediately to the 
east also extends over the property line and onto the Coast Guard property. This 
variance would not be a detriment to the neighborhood and other homes extend to 
or over the rear property line. 
 
2. Such variance will not impair the intent and purpose of this Ordinance. 
The R-1C zone is intended to provide areas for single family home on very small 
lots. The request does not impair the intent of the ordinance for single family 
homes. 
 
3. Exceptional or extraordinary circumstances or conditions apply to the property in 
question or to the intended use of the property that do not apply generally to other 
properties in the same zoning district. Such circumstances shall create a practical 
difficulty because of unique circumstances or physical conditions such as narrowness, 
shallowness, shape or topography of the property involved, or to the intended use of the 
property. See Section 2204(2). 
This property is larger than many properties in the R1-C zone but does have a 14 
foot easement bisecting the property at what could otherwise be a building area. 
This easement significantly reduces the available envelop to construct a new 
home with a deck. It is the applicant’s desire to extend the home and deck closer 
to the water. To do this the applicant needs to extend the home and deck onto the 
Coast Guard property which extends the length of the rear of the parcel. Another 
unusual circumstance could be that the applicant does not own to the water line 
but forty (40) feet back behind the Coast Guard property. The proposed house and 
deck will not be closer to the water’s edge than neighboring properties. 
 

 
September 22, 2014 
ZBA Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 43 of 53



2 
 

4. Such variance is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of a substantial 
property right similar to that possessed by other properties in the same zoning district 
and in the vicinity. The possibility of increased financial return shall not of itself be 
deemed sufficient to warrant a variance. 
The ZBA will need to determine if building to the property line, in this case, is a 
substantial property right that needs to be preserved with a variance. 
 
5. The condition or situation of the specific piece of property or of the intended use of 
said property, for which the variance is sought, is not of so general or recurrent a nature 
as to make reasonably practicable the formulation of a general regulation for such 
conditions or situation. 
This is an uncommon request. Staff does not recommend amending the zoning 
ordinance to accommodate this situation.   
 
6. The condition or situation of the specific piece of property or of the intended use of 
said property, for which the variance is sought, shall not be the result of actions of the 
property owner. In other words, the problem shall not be self-created. 
The problem is self-created as it is the desire of the owner to extend the home and 
deck to the property line. It is not self-created in the fact that there is an easement 
bisecting the property within the common building envelope.  
 
7. That strict compliance with area, setbacks, frontage, height, bulk or density would 
unreasonably prevent the owner from using the property for a permitted purpose, or 
would render conformity unnecessarily burdensome. 
Strict compliance would not prevent a home from being constructed but would 
require a reconfiguration of the site and limit the home and deck to 43 feet from 
the water’s edge. Whether that is unnecessarily burdensome is a decision for the 
ZBA. 
 
8. That the variance requested is the minimum amount necessary to overcome the 
inequality inherent in the particular property or mitigate the hardship. 
Staff has no problem with the variance given that the same situation is seen on a 
neighboring property, there is an easement on which the applicant may not build 
and the fact that the Coast Guard has already issued a license agreement for the 
portion of the project that extends onto their property.  
 
9. That the variance will relate only to property under the control of the applicant.  
The variance request only involves the property owned by the applicant. 
 

 
September 22, 2014 
ZBA Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 44 of 53



Zoning Board of Appeals 
Staff Report 

September 22, 2014 

Zoning Board of Appeals Staff Report 

 
Agenda Item #6c 

Front Yard Accessory Building Variance 
 

 
City of South Haven 

 

 
Background Information: Adam Schaap of Schaap Builders, Inc. is requesting a variance to 
construct a detached accessory building in the front yard of a proposed house at 906 Monroe 
Boulevard. Zoning ordinance section 1708-1 prohibits detached accessory buildings in front 
yards. The preliminary site plan also shows an attached garage. 
 
Recommendation: Staff recommends that the ZBA members review the application, staff 
findings of fact and the physical property before making a determination on the variance. The 
members must find that the request complies with all standards of zoning ordinance section 
2205 to approve a variance. Staff does not find just cause for a variance in this situation. 
 
Support Material: 
 
Completed application  
Aerial photo of property 
Staff Findings of Fact 
 
 

 
September 22, 2014 
ZBA Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 45 of 53



 
September 22, 2014 
ZBA Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 46 of 53



 
September 22, 2014 
ZBA Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 47 of 53



 
September 22, 2014 
ZBA Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 48 of 53



 
September 22, 2014 
ZBA Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 49 of 53



phone (616) 667-9650
es2@comcast.net

Grandville, MI  49418

Engineered Structures, LLC
632 Barry Street SW

DRAWN BY:

PROJECT MANAGEMENT:

DATE :

SHEET NO. :

PROJECT No. & Name:

14.1.06

SHEET TITLE :

ISSUE DESCRIPTION :

8/15/14

A0.1

David Lorenz &
Jonathan Lorenz

SITE PLAN

INTERIORS :

90
6 

M
on

ro
e 

So
ut

h 
H

av
en

 M
I

49
09

0

BUILDER :

Lorenz & Company
Buildings • Interiors • Furnishings

1125 GIDDINGS AVE., SE
GRAND RAPIDS  MI, 49506

(616) 272-8624

A
m

y 
M

A
R

T
IN

C
LI

E
N

T
 :

© Lorenz & Co. LLC

STRUCTURAL ENGINEER :

DESIGN
DEVELOPMENT

David Lorenz &
Jonathan Lorenz

PIER VIEW SOUTH
(Lot #6)

906 Monroe
South Haven, MI 49090

PROPOSED
POOL =

N

PROPOSED ASPHALT
DRIVEWAY =

PROPOSED GRASS
PAVERS =

PROPOSED GRASS
PAVERS =

8'
-0

"
29

'-7
 3

/4
"

12
'-0

"

49
'-7

 3
/4

"

28'-0" 12'-0" 14'-0" 16'-0" 32'-0" 12'-0" 28'-0" 40'-0" 23'-0" 22'-0" 13'-0" 40'-11 5/8"

20
'-0

"

14'-0" 60'-0" 28'-0" 53'-0" 10'-0"
6'-0" 6'-0"

6'-2 1/2"
15'-7" 26'-2 1/2"

102'-0" 53'-0"

14'-0" 16'-0" 4'-0" 12'-0" 16'-0" 12'-0" 28'-0"

1'
-0

"
18

'-0
"

10
'-0

"
1'

-0
"

23
'-0

"
6'

-0
"

1'
-0

"
18

'-0
"

4'
-0

"

1'
-4

"
7'

-4
"

1'
-4

"

5'
-0

"
18

'-0
"

5'
-0

"

23
'-0

"
11

'-0
"

10
'-0

"

21
'-0

"

21
'-0

"

85
'-7

 3
/4

"
38

'-8
"

24
'-0

"
49

'-7
 3

/4
"

12
'-0

"

155'-0" 85'-11 5/8"

7'
-0

"
4'

-0
"

4'-0"

11'-8 7/8" 104'-3 1/8"

R 35'-8"

R 8'-0" R 40'-0"

R 50'-0"

R 40'-0"

R 50'-0"

R 3'-3 7/8"

R 8'-0"

R 23'-7 3/8"

R 12'-7 3/8"

R 8'-0"

R 4'-0"
R 3'-0"

R 4'-0"

R 8'-0"

R 4'-0"

LOT AREA = 25,351 sq ft

19,992 sq ft

6,490 sq ft

PROPOSED FOOTPRINT = 2,495 sq ft

2,355 sq ft 9'x20' PARKING PARCEL

9'x20' PARKING PARCEL

508 sq ft

245 sq ft

560 sq ft

PROPOSED SIDEWALK = 185 sq ft

UTILITY POLE

NEAREST INTERSECTION OF
MONROE & ELKENBURG STREETS

UTILITY POLE

C0

6228.
0'

10.0'

86
'

223.21' 60
44

E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 S
ID

E
W

A
LK

P

P P

P

P

P P

P

M

WV

WV

WV

M

E

E
GP

P

P

P

P

T

T

STORMWATER
RUNOFF FLOW

STORMWATER
RUNOFF FLOW

Catch Basin

CO
Cleanout

EElectric Meter

Set Wood Stake

GM
Gas Meter

Guywire

Set Iron

Found IronCatch Basin

LEGEND

906 South Monroe
South Haven, MI
49090

COVERAGE = 10%

STORMWATER
RUNOFF FLOW

STORMWATER
RUNOFF FLOW

E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 S
ID

E
W

A
LK

Water Valve
WV

Utility Pole

Post
P

Manhole M

Hydrant

Guypole
GP

BUILDABLE AREA = 9,305 sq ft

LOT #6

PROPOSED
STRUCTURE

SCALE: 1"   = 10'

1 SITE PLAN
A0.1 0 5' 10' 20'

 
September 22, 2014 
ZBA Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 50 of 53



 
September 22, 2014 
ZBA Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 51 of 53



1 
 

STAFF FINDINGS OF FACT 
CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
 
DATE: September 22, 2014 
ADDRESS: 906 Monroe Blvd. 
ZONING DISTRICT: R-1B 
LOT DIMENSIONS: Front - 12 feet at flag lot widening to 85.65’ after 16 feet; Sides – 
330 feet; Rear – 100.36’ 
LOT AREA: .53 acres (22,962 sq. feet) 
LOT COVERAGE: NA 
REQUIRED SETBACKS: Front – 25’; Rear – 25’; Side – 3/15’ 
EXISTING SETBACKS: Vacant 
PROPOSED SETBACKS: Front – 35’; Rear – NA; Side – Approx. 30’/35’ 
VARIANCE REQUEST: Adam Schaap of Schaap Builders, Inc. is requesting a variance to 
construct a detached accessory building in the front yard of a proposed house at 906 Monroe 
Boulevard. Zoning ordinance section 1708-1 prohibits detached accessory buildings in front 
yards. 
 
DIMENSIONAL VARIANCE STANDARDS 
City of South Haven Zoning Ordinance Section 2205: 
 
1. Such variance will not be detrimental to adjacent property and the surrounding 
neighborhood. 
The proposed house will be more than 100 feet from the street right-of-way. The 
proposed garage is within the allowable setback for a principle structure. The 
garage will not be in line with other structures constructed on adjacent lots. Staff 
finds the variance is not common in the neighborhood but is also not necessarily 
detrimental. 
 
2. Such variance will not impair the intent and purpose of this Ordinance. 
The R-1B zone is intended to provide areas for single family homes. Accessory 
buildings are permitted in the zone provided they are not placed in the front yard. 
The request does not impair the intent of the ordinance for single family homes 
but could set a precedent for front yard detached garages. 
 
3. Exceptional or extraordinary circumstances or conditions apply to the property in 
question or to the intended use of the property that do not apply generally to other 
properties in the same zoning district. Such circumstances shall create a practical 
difficulty because of unique circumstances or physical conditions such as narrowness, 
shallowness, shape or topography of the property involved, or to the intended use of the 
property. See Section 2204(2). 
Staff does not find any exceptional or extraordinary circumstances which could 
be applied to this property. The parcel is of ample size and the proposed 
accessory could be moved back and attached to the house through a breezeway 
or portico. 
 
4. Such variance is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of a substantial 
property right similar to that possessed by other properties in the same zoning district 
and in the vicinity. The possibility of increased financial return shall not of itself be 
deemed sufficient to warrant a variance. 

 
September 22, 2014 
ZBA Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 52 of 53



2 
 

 
The applicant has shown on the site plan an attached garage of 644 square feet. A 
second garage is not a necessary or protected property right. Most homes in the 
city do not have a second garage. It is possible for the applicant to increase the 
size of the attached garage and eliminate the need for the second garage or to 
attach the garage with a portico or breezeway. 
 
5. The condition or situation of the specific piece of property or of the intended use of 
said property, for which the variance is sought, is not of so general or recurrent a nature 
as to make reasonably practicable the formulation of a general regulation for such 
conditions or situation. 
This is an uncommon request. Staff does not recommend amending the zoning 
ordinance to accommodate this situation.   
 
6. The condition or situation of the specific piece of property or of the intended use of 
said property, for which the variance is sought, shall not be the result of actions of the 
property owner. In other words, the problem shall not be self-created. 
The problem is self-created as it is the desire of the owner to have a second 
garage and to place that garage in the front yard. Staff believes there are 
alternative options for storage of vehicles or other personal items.  
 
7. That strict compliance with area, setbacks, frontage, height, bulk or density would 
unreasonably prevent the owner from using the property for a permitted purpose, or 
would render conformity unnecessarily burdensome. 
Strict compliance would not prevent a home and garage from being constructed 
but would require a reconfiguration of the site. Whether that is unnecessarily 
burdensome is a decision for the ZBA. 
 
8. That the variance requested is the minimum amount necessary to overcome the 
inequality inherent in the particular property or mitigate the hardship. 
Staff does not believe the variance is necessary as there is no inequity inherent in 
the property itself.  
 
9. That the variance will relate only to property under the control of the applicant.  
The variance request only involves the property owned by the applicant. 
 

 
September 22, 2014 
ZBA Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 53 of 53


	ZBA Agenda pg
	07-28-2014 ZBA Minutes DRAFT
	#6a. 38 North Shore Drive - Land Division packet
	ZBA Staff Report
	Land Division Application
	Land Division Application - ZBA Appeal

	#6b. 26 Grand Avenue - Variances packet
	09-22-2014 ZBA Staff Report
	Application
	Aerial photo
	STAFF FINDINGS OF FACT

	#6c. 906 Monroe Blvd packet
	ZBA Staff Report
	Application 906 Monroe Blvd
	color rendering
	site plan
	Suvey of site
	STAFF FINDINGS OF FACT




